#### ALBEMARLE-CHARLOTTESVILLE REGIONAL JAIL AUTHORITY



#### (SERVING ALBEMARLE, CHARLOTTESVILLE, NELSON)

160 Peregory Lane Charlottesville, Virginia 22902

Phone: (434) 977-6981 Fax: (434) 951-1339 Web: http://www.acri.org Col. Martin Kumer, Superintendent (ext. 230) Mrs. Marce B. Anderson, Clerk (ext. 229)

#### Board Business Meeting June 9, 2022 (12:00 p.m. – 2 p.m.)

Albemarle-Charlottesville Regional Jail, 160 Peregory Lane, Charlottesville, VA

#### **AGENDA**

(Action/Information)

I. ACRJ Board Meeting - Call to Order

Adopt Meeting Agenda

Action Item

II. Consent Agenda

For Approval:

1) Draft Summary Minutes May 12, 2022 ACRJA Board Bi-Monthly Business Meeting

Action Item

Informational

1) Administrative Reports

- a) Personnel Report May 2022
- b) Out of Compliance Report March 2022
- c) Census Report April 2022
- d) Work Force Report / VDOT Report / Litter Control Report –May 2022
- e) Special Management Report May 2022
- f) Home Electronic Incarceration Report thru May 2022
- III. Matters from the Public (Time Limit: 3 Minutes / 2 Minutes if more than 9 speakers no longer than 30 minutes)
- IV. Matters from ACRJA Attorney Brendan Hefty

1) Amended Service Agreement

Action Item

- V. Matters from ACRJA Board Members
- VI. Matters from Business Manager Martin Kumer / Brendan Hefty

Finance Director Vacancy Plan
 YTD Unaudited Financials

Informational Item

Informational Item

VII. Matters from the Superintendent - Colonel Martin Kumer

1) Board of Local and Regional Jails Presentation

Informational Item

2) COVID Update

Informational Item

VIII. New Business –

IX. Closed Session -

Action Item

1) Annual evaluation of the Superintendent

X. Adjourn to August 11, 2022 – 12:00 pm – 2:00 pm

Action Item

**Authority Board** 

Doug Walker (Albemarle)
Sheriff Chan Bryant (Albemarle)
Vacant (Citizen Rep) (Albemarle)
Diantha McKeel (Albemarle) - Chair

Sheriff James E. Brown, III (Charlottesville)
Lisa Draine (Charlottesville)
Sena Magill (Charlottesville)
Ashley Reynolds Marshall (Charlottesville)

Jay James (Joint Rep) - Vice Chair Sheriff David Hill (Nelson) Stephen Carter (Nelson)

### **DRAFT**

### **Summary Minutes of the** Albemarle Charlottesville Regional Jail Authority Board Meeting May 12, 2022

### **Jail Board Members Present:**

**Jail Board Members Absent:** 

Ms. Diantha McKeel Mr. Jay James Sheriff Chan Bryant Mr. Doug Walker Mrs. Ashley Reynolds Marshall Ms. Lisa Draine Sheriff David Hill

Mr. Steve Carter Ms. Sena Magill

#### **Others Present:**

Sheriff James Brown

Colonel Martin Kumer Mrs. Marce Anderson Mr. Brendan Hefty

The meeting was called to order at 12:00 pm by Chairperson Diantha McKeel.

Ms. McKeel welcomed everyone to the first in person hybrid meeting. She also advised the board that when they are speaking, they are able to remove their masks.

Ms. McKeel asked everyone present to introduce themselves.

Sheriff James Brown, Charlottesville City Sheriff Sheriff Chan Bryant, Albemarle County Sheriff Jay James, Charlottesville Joint Citizen Representative Doug Walker, Deputy County Executive for Albemarle Brendan Hefty, General Counsel to the Authority Martin Kumer, Superintendent Diantha McKeel, Albemarle County Board of Supervisors

Marce Anderson, Board Clerk

Ashley Reynolds Marshall, Deputy City Manager for Racial Equality, Diversity and Inclusion for the City of Charlottesville

Sheriff David Hill, Nelson County Sheriff Captain Aaron Carver, Chief of Security Gequetta "G" Murray-Key, Chief of Operations Felicia Morris, Human Resources Rob Barnabei, Major

Ms. McKeel noted that Sena Magill is absent due to illness and Steve Carter was unable to attend.

Ms. McKeel added to the agenda "Policy Governing Participation by Members in a Meeting via Electronic Communication" which will be addressed by Attorney, Brendan Hefty later in the meeting.

Mr. James made a motion to adopt the agenda with the addition. Sheriff Brown seconded the motion. The motion carried.

Chairperson McKeel asked for a motion to adopt the consent agenda. Mrs. Marshall made a motion to adopt the consent agenda. Sheriff Bryant seconded the motion. The motion carried.

#### **Matters from the Public:**

**Susan Perry, Albemarle County Resident** – Ms. Perry stated that her main concerns are transparency about this huge project. She stated that she would prefer to see projects that are prioritized with the most important down to the least important and that the cost be evident so as a community we can make intelligent decisions.

**Harold Folley** – Mr. Folley stated that he is the facilitator for the People's Coalition, an organization that works on dismantling the racist criminal justice system. Mr. Folley stated that he had previously been incarcerated in the jail and it is still a problem. The People's Coalition is going to be watching and hoping that the process doesn't get even more untransparent than it has been.

Gloria Beard - Was not present

Jeff Fogel – Was not present

### **Matters from Brendan Hefty, ACRJA Attorney:**

Mr. Hefty advised the board that the board will need to retain bond counsel for the financial side of things. Bond counsel is used when localities are considering bond issuances. Mr. Hefty

asked the board to consider Sands Anderson as bond counsel (literature in the May Board Packet).

Mr. James made a motion to retain Sands Anderson as bond counsel. Sheriff Bryant seconded the motion. The motion carried.

Mr. Hefty asked the board to review the remote participation policy to consider adopting. The state code of Virginia allows governing bodies, counties and cities, jail authorities and public bodies to allow members to participate remotely up to two times a year as long as there is a quorum physically present. Given the ongoing pandemic, it may become necessary for someone who is quarantining to participate remotely down the road. Many localities have adopted a similar policy. The state code is a procedural matter that requires this board to adopt a policy that allows someone to participate via Zoom. One of the reasons is a medical emergency or medical issue that requires you to be out. The other is that you have a personal matter that requires you to be away from the jail board meeting. You must state the specific personal matter. Mr. James asked what constitutes a quorum. Mr. Hefty advised that 6 members would constitute a quorum. You must have 6 members here physically in order to have a quorum and conduct business.

Ms. Marshall made a motion to adopt the Policy Governing Participation by Members in a Meeting via Electronic Communication. Sheriff Hill seconded the motion. The motion carried. (The signed policy can be found at ACRJ.org)

### **Matters from the ACRIA Board Members:**

Mr. James made a motion and read a proclamation submitted on behalf of the ACRJA Board recognizing National Correctional Officers and Employees week. Sheriff Brown seconded the motion. The motion carried.

Ms. McKeel recognized Marce Anderson, Clerk of the ACRJAB in honor of Municipal Clerk's week.

Ms. Draine stated that she wanted some additional information as to why Cyndra Van Clief was removed from the board. Ms. Draine further stated that she feels it sets a bad precedent. Ms. McKeel advised Ms. Draine that the decision was made by the Albemarle County Board of Supervisors in closed session and it will not be discussed today.

Sheriff Hill asked Colonel Kumer if he could provide some information regarding video visitation. Colonel Kumer advised Sheriff Hill that professional visitors are free and are not monitored. They are able to register with Mrs. Murray-Key. Family and friends also have to register. There is a link on our website that will allow them to do so (ACRJ.org). Visitation is

allowed from the moment the system is turned on in the morning until it is turned off late in the evening.

### **Matters from the Business Manager:**

**Business Manager Position** – The business manager position has been vacant since December 31, 2021. We advertised for the position beginning in February, 2022. During that time we received 1 application and were waiting for additional applicants before starting the interview process. It is important that the board and the community understand that we are well served with regard to financial services here at the jail. You will be hearing from the individual who is spearheading that, Ann Shawver. We hired her as a part-time employee to assist with the transition from Albemarle County being our fiscal agent to handling everything in house. Although Jeff was no longer with us, we have never truly been without a Director of Finance. Ms. Shawver has been there for us and will continue to be. She has agreed to continue to assist us until we can fill this position. Colonel Kumer thanked the other members of the finance team as well. Ms. McKeel asked if Colonel Kumer could address who takes care of the financing of the renovation. Colonel Kumer advised that we have hired Davenport as our financial advisors and Sands Anderson for the bond issuance. This type of debt is beyond what any entity would take on by themselves. Both firms are well experienced and they will advise us through that process.

**FY 21 Audit** – Colonel Kumer introduced Ann Shawver to the board. Mrs. Shawver reviewed the audited financials for the board (Audit documents can be found at ACRJ.org).

Ms. Beard entered the meeting and made the following comments.

**Gloria Beard** – Ms. Beard stated that she is with the People's Coalition and she is concerned about the budget and they want to build more adding more to the jail. Don't you all think that we should be thinking about mental health issues with the people that are being arrested and put in jail? Have you thought about that? Ms. McKeel advised Ms. Beard that it is not the practice of the board to dialogue with speakers. However, we will be talking about the renovation shortly.

**FY 22 YTD Financials** – Colonel Kumer reviewed the FY 23 YTD budget that was previously approved (budget documents can be found at ACRJ.org).

### **Matters from Colonel Martin Kumer, Superintendent:**

**Pay Study** - Colonel Kumer reviewed the pay study information with the board. There was no action needed. The board approved the FY 23 budget at the March 2022 board meeting which included salary increases. (Supporting documents can be found at ACRJ.org)

**Renovation / Expansion Update** – Colonel Kumer presented a detailed timeline of the renovation. Mr. Walker advised that transparency is quite important. Ms. McKeel asked that the timeline be added to the website, ACRJ.org for everyone to access. Colonel Kumer advised that he along with Moseley Architects and Ms. McKeel would be requesting funding from the Board of Local and Regional Jails on May 18, 2022. This is to receive 25% reimbursement from the state for the project.

Colonel Kumer advised Ms. Beard that mental health is a priority and it will be addressed with this renovation. Colonel Kumer also stressed that this project does not add any additional beds to the facility.

Closed Session – Mr. Hefty asked for a motion to go into closed session under section 2.23711A1 to discuss the Superintendent's annual review. Mr. Walker made the motion. Sheriff Hill seconded the motion. The motion carried. The meeting moved to closed session.

Mr. Hefty asked to return to open session by roll call vote after discussing only the matter identified. Roll call was as follows:

Sheriff Hill	Yes
Ms. Draine	Yes
Mrs. Marshall	Yes
Ms. McKeel	Yes
Mr. Walker	Yes
Sheriff Bryant	Yes
Sheriff Brown	Yes

The meeting resumed in open session.

Ms. McKeel advised the board that the July meeting would be canceled but the meeting was adjourned to June 9, 2022 at 12:00 pm.

The meeting was adjourned at 2:15 pm.

**DRAFT** 

## **NEW HIRES MAY 2022**

## PERSONNEL/NEW HIRES:

Lids Reconciliation (State Bonus Payment Breakdown) and Final Out of Compliance Figures

	5/2/2022	5/2/2022	3/1/2022	2/4/2022
Total number of inmates the jail received a \$8.00 bonus payment	76	76	81	93
The number of inmates who have been released or transferred	53	47	16	26
The number of inmates participating in jail sponsored programs*	1	0	3	2
The number of inmates with less than 60 days until their scheduled release**	0	0	0	0
The number of inmates who are being held as courtesies for other jurisdictions.	0	0	0	0
Total number of state sentenced ACRJ inmates who are eligible for intake	22	29	62	65
Percentage of State Responsible inmates compared to jail's total inmate population	7.09	8.73	18.34	18.73

<sup>\*</sup>These are state sentenced inmates who are not transferred to DOC because they are participating in jail sponsored programs.

- (1) This number represents 7.09% of the jail's population (310) as of 10:16 am on Fri., June 3, 2022
- (2) This number represents 8.73% of the jail's population (332) as of 10.56 am on Mon., May 2, 2022
- (3) This number represents 18.34% of the jail's population (338) as of 8:49 am on Tues., March 1, 2022
- (4) This number represents 18.73% of the jail's population (347) as of 8:52 am on Friday, Feb. 4, 2022

The primary driver for the sharp increase in the State Responsible population is the closure of DOC facilities around the state. This greatly reduced the number of beds available for the intake of state responsible inmates from local jails. In addition there has been an ever increasing backlog of state responsible inmates in local jails all across the state. Last year the DOC instituted a policy to focus on receiving inmates with more than two years to serve as opposed to one year.

<sup>\*\*</sup>The DOC will not accept inmates with less than 60 days to serve.

## **CENSUS**

2021/2022	COA	City	Nelson	Federal	Other	Total
July 2021	4,647	5,129	1,608	381	478	12,243
August	4,500	4,972	1,662	417	341	11,892
September	4,235	4,579	1,706	422	247	11,189
October	4,187	4,627	1,816	496	198	11,324
November	4,425	4,443	1,758	456	173	11,255
December	4,090	4,336	1,626	452	176	10,680
January-22	4,015	4,406	1,460	498	291	10,670
February	3,391	4,215	1,484	504	254	9,848
March	3,796	4,501	1,709	520	307	10,833
April	3,840	4,123	1,479	395	295	10,132

## **ICWFP STATS 2022**

Departments	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Total Hours
ALBEMARLE COUNTY	0	0	15	40	23								
VDOT	0	0	0	0	0								
PROGRAM TOTALS			15	40	23								
DOLLAR CREDITS			\$108.75	\$290.00	\$166.75								

### **Special Management Housing at ACRJ**

May 2022, special management housing stats are as follows:

- 36 inmates were assigned to Administrative Segregation
- 1 inmate was assigned to General Detention
- 34 inmates were assigned to Medical Segregation
- 21 inmates were assigned to Pre-Hearing or Disciplinary Detention

## Albemarle-Charlottesville Regional Jail Authority Board Executive Summary

Subject: HEI Update					
Total number of inmates placed on H	589				
7 were removed from the program after	being c	harged with a criminal offense wl	nile on HEI.		
Violation of protective order, guilty-		1			
Simple assault / strangulation-		1			
Simple assault, damage / prevent phone		1			
Possession of a firearm, marijuana PWI	sell-	1			
Domestic assault 3 <sup>rd</sup> offense-	1.	1			
Actual or simulated masturbation in pul	olic-	1			
84 participants have been removed from	n HEI fo	r violations including the 7 above	<b>e.</b>		
HEI Participants by Court					
Albemarle County Circuit Court-	113	Charlottesville City Circuit-	116		
Nelson County Circuit Court-	29	Nelson General District-	3		
Albemarle General District-	128	Charlottesville General District	_		
Albemarle J&DR-	3	Charlottesville J&DR-	21		
Nelson J&DR-	1	Department of Corrections-	4		
Combined Courts-	22	•			
Total-	471				
Other Cities/Counties					
Waynesboro-	2	Staunton City-	1		
Cumberland-	1	Fluvanna-	6		
Orange-	2	Buckingham-	5		
Greene-	8	Louisa-	6		
Sussex-	1				
Total-	31				
Misc. (Hospital, etc.)-	38				

#### AMENDED AND RESTATED

## ALBEMARLE-CHARLOTTESVILLE REGIONAL JAIL AUTHORITY SERVICE AGREEMENT

By and Among

THE COUNTY OF ALBEMARLE,
THE COUNTY OF NELSON

and

THE CITY OF CHARLOTTESVILLE

and

THE ALBEMARLE-CHARLOTTESVILLE REGIONAL JAIL AUTHORITY

#### **AGREEMENT**

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made this \_\_\_\_\_ May 2022 by and among the COUNTY OF ALBEMARLE, the COUNTY OF NELSON and the CITY OF CHARLOTTESVILLE, all of which are political subdivisions of the Commonwealth of Virginia (collectively the "Member Jurisdictions"), and the ALBEMARLE-CHARLOTTESVILLE REGIONAL JAIL AUTHORITY (the "Authority").

#### RECITALS

**WHEREAS**, the Authority has been created to provide secure confinement, at the local level, for local and state-responsible inmates, and to enhance the public safety and welfare within the region for the protection of its citizens; and

**WHEREAS,** the Authority and Member Jurisdictions initially adopted a Service Agreement on November 15, 1995 with amendments adopted on March 12, 1998 and November 12, 1998 (together, the "Original Service Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, the Member Jurisdictions desire to amend and restate the Original Service Agreement containing the authority governing the parties' respective obligations.

**NOW, THEREFORE,** the parties agree as follows:

## ARTICLE I Definitions

The capitalized terms in this Agreement have the meanings set forth below unless the context otherwise requires.

"Annual Budget" has the meaning given to such term in Section 4.7.

"Applicable Laws" means all applicable laws, ordinances, judgments, decrees, injunctions, writs and orders of any court, arbitrator or governmental agency or authority and all rules, regulations, orders, interpretations, licenses and permits of any Federal, state, county, municipal, regional, foreign or other governmental body, instrumentality, agency or authority.

"Authority" means the Albemarle-Charlottesville Regional Jail Authority, as created by the Original Service.

"Authority Default" has the meaning given to such term in Section 9.1.

"Bonds" means revenue bonds issued by the Authority to finance or refinance the design, construction, equipping and other costs of the Jail and any additions or improvements thereto.

"Capital Expenses" means all costs, including but not limited to costs for architectural, engineering, planning, legal, financial or other professional services; land acquisition, labor, materials and equipment, contractors' fees, utility connection and building permit fees, capitalized interest, and other charges incurred for demolition, excavation, construction, equipping, paving, or landscaping, incurred or required for building and otherwise completing any addition or renovation to the existing Jail, or for building any future replacement for the Jail. Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, "Capital Expenses" shall also include "Debt Service."

"Debt Service" means the amounts of principal and interest payable by the Authority under any Obligations. The Member Jurisdictions shall reimburse the Authority for its Debt Service attributable to Capital Expenses, through the per diem rate paid by the Member Jurisdictions for their prisoners, and in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.1 below.

"Expenses" means all expenses which may reasonably be determined by the Authority to be attributable directly or indirectly to the ownership or operation of the Jail and payable as operating expenses in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall also include debt service payments and other capital expenses, required payments to the Operating Reserve Fund established in Section 5.3, required payments to any debt service reserve established in connection with any Bonds and other reasonable or necessary payments required to comply with debt service coverage requirements imposed in connection with any Bonds in Section 5.3.

"Facilities Charge" and "Facilities Charges" means the amounts payable by the Member Jurisdictions as determined in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.1(a)(2).

"Facilities Charge Percentages" has the meaning given such term in Section 5.1 (a)(2)(ii).

"Fiscal Year" means the annual accounting period from July 1 of one year to June 30 of the following year.

"Jail" means the existing regional Joint Security Complex located at 1600 Avon Street Extended, Charlottesville, Virginia, together with any additions or improvements constructed and equipped by the Authority at that location or any future replacement for such facility at such other location as may be determined by the Authority.

"Member Jurisdiction" means the County of Albemarle, the City of Charlottesville, and the County of Nelson, each a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and any other political subdivision that may hereafter join the Authority, but excluding any political subdivision that may have withdrawn from the Authority, as provided in Section 6.7 and 6.8, respectively.

"Member Jurisdiction Default" has the meaning given to such term in Section 9.2.

"Net Debt Service" means the total annual Debt Service on Obligations, less any reimbursements for such Debt Service received from the Commonwealth of Virginia.

"Net Operating Expenses" means Operating Expenses reduced by an amount equal to revenue from (i) non-member jurisdictions (including the state or federal government), (ii) Operating Expenses of the Authority reimbursed by the Commonwealth of Virginia, and (iii) all other non-member revenue.

"Non-Member Jurisdictions" means political subdivisions or agencies thereof, including but not limited to, the federal government and the District of Columbia, which utilize the Jail.

"Non-Member Per Diem Rate" means the daily charge to Non-Member Jurisdictions for each Prisoner as determined from time to time by the Authority.

"Notes" means revenue anticipation notes issued by the Authority.

"Obligations" means any Notes, Bonds, lease financing obligations or other instruments of debt issued by the Authority to finance or refinance the Jail serving the Member Jurisdictions.

"Operating Expenses" means all expenditures for salaries, goods, services, utilities, routine maintenance and other items incurred by the Authority in the daily ownership and operation of the Jail, but excludes any Capital Expenses.

"Operating Reserve Fund" means the reserve fund established in Section 5.3.

"Per Diem Rate" means a uniform daily rate equal to Net Operating Expenses plus Debt Service for the relevant Fiscal Year divided by the total number of beds used by Member Jurisdictions in the preceding Fiscal Year divided by 365 or 366 days, as the case may be.

"Placed in Service" means the first day on which the Jail or any addition thereto has been certified by the appropriate authority of the Commonwealth to accept Prisoners.

"Prisoner(s)" has the meaning given in such term in Section 4.1.

#### ARTICLE II

Creation of Authority

Section 2.1 Regional Jail Authority. By their approval and execution of this Agreement, the Member Jurisdictions hereby reaffirm the establishment in the Original Service Agreement of a regional jail authority pursuant to Chapter 3, Article 3.1 of Title 53.1 (Sections 53.1-95.2 et. seq.) of the Code of Virginia, as amended. The name of the Authority shall be the ALBEMARLE-CHARLOTTESVILLE REGIONAL JAIL AUTHORITY (the "Authority"). The principal office of the Authority shall be located at the Page 4 of 18

Office of the Superintendent of the Albemarle-Charlottesville Joint Security Complex, 1600 Avon Street Extended, Charlottesville, Virginia 22902.

**Section 2.2 Board.** The powers of the Authority shall be exercised by a Board (the "Board") consisting of eleven (11) members. Four members shall be from the City of Charlottesville, four members shall be from the County of Albemarle, and three members shall be from the County of Nelson. The first member from the City of Charlottesville, the County of Albemarle, and the County of Nelson shall be its duly elected sheriff. The second member from the City of Charlottesville and the County of Albemarle shall be a currently serving member of the Jurisdiction's governing body appointed by the governing body. The second member from Nelson County shall be either a currently serving member of the Jurisdiction's governing body or a non-serving citizen of Nelson County. The third member from the City of Charlottesville, the County of Albemarle, and the County of Nelson shall be its current county executive, city manager or other chief executive officer, provided that such officers may designate other staff members to act as their alternates, who, if approved by their respective governing bodies, may attend and vote in place of the chief executives. The fourth member from the City of Charlottesville and the County of Albemarle shall be any other citizen of a Member Jurisdiction appointed by its governing body. The Sheriffs' service on the Authority shall be coterminous with their elected terms, and executive officers' terms shall be coterminous with their employment. Other members shall be appointed for three-year terms. Members may be removed by their appointing authorities for failure to attend meetings or for other sufficient cause. The membership of the Authority may be increased or decreased by joint agreement of the governing bodies of the Member Jurisdictions, subject to the limits imposed by applicable state statutes. Alternates may be appointed as provided by state law.

Any officer or employee of a Member Jurisdiction, appointed to the Board by that Member Jurisdiction, who ceases to hold office or be employed in the Member Jurisdiction shall vacate his or her seat on the Board, unless reappointed by the governing body of the Member Jurisdiction.

The Board shall establish bylaws governing the election of officers, the conduct and scheduling of meetings and giving notice thereof, and other procedural matters.

**Section 2.3** Purpose of Authority. The purpose of the Authority shall be to operate the Jail and to finance, design, construct and operate additions or renovations to the existing jail facility, subject to all zoning and other legal requirements, as described in Article III of this Agreement. The general scope and nature of such improvements and additions and the estimated cost of designing, financing and constructing same are set forth in Section 3.1. It is anticipated that this Capital Expense will be financed through Obligations issued by the Authority, and that reimbursement of a portion of the annual Debt Service on these Obligations will be paid by the Commonwealth of Virginia.

**Section 2.4 Powers of Authority.** The Authority shall have all powers as set forth in Chapter 3, Article 3.1 of Title 53.1 (Sections 53.1-95.2 et. seq.) of the Code of Virginia, or its successor statutes, as amended from time to time, as well as all other powers conferred by state law upon regional jail authorities, and all powers necessarily and reasonably implied from such expressly granted powers.

**Section 2.5 Future disposition of Jail Property.** In the event the Authority is to be dissolved or its powers and obligations are to be transferred by operation of law to some other public entity, the Authority shall, if consistent with outstanding bond indentures or other obligations, convey all its real and personal property to such other entity for a consideration of One Dollar. In the event the Authority determines that the real estate and improvements comprising present Jail property are no longer needed for jail purposes, the Authority shall reconvey the same to the County of Albemarle and the City of Charlottesville, and the County of Nelson or their successors and assigns, as tenants in common.

Section 2.6 <u>Prior Agreement.</u> This Agreement supersedes the Original Service Agreement and all other prior agreements and amendments. Any provision of such earlier agreement inconsistent with this Agreement shall be of no further effect upon the adoption of this Agreement by all of the parties hereto. The Member Jurisdictions agree to consider amending their existing ordinances, and taking such other actions as may be necessary to reflect the transfer of ownership of and responsibility for the Jail from the Regional Jail Board to the Authority consistent with this Agreement.

## ARTICLE III New Construction

**Section 3.1** <u>Construction of Jail Improvements</u>. Any Obligations for future improvements to or expansion of the Jail shall require the approval of the governing bodies of each of the Member Jurisdictions.

#### ARTICLE IV

## Provision of Services, Operation and Maintenance

**Section 4.1** <u>Acceptance of Prisoners</u>. The Authority will accept Prisoners from each Member Jurisdiction (and to the extent space is available, from other jurisdictions, including the federal government and its agencies) who have been (i) duly arrested for committing a criminal offense and held over pending trial or (ii) duly convicted of committing a criminal offense and sentenced to a term of incarceration by a court having proper jurisdiction (the "Prisoners"). If the Jail is at capacity, as defined by the

Page 6 of 18

Authority, the Authority shall be responsible for securing alternative housing for all Prisoners from the Member Jurisdictions. The Authority shall first, however, have a duty to remove all Prisoners other than those from Member Jurisdictions from the Jail.

Section 4.2 <u>Commitment of Prisoners</u>. Each Member Jurisdiction agrees to offer to commit all of its Prisoners to the custody of the Authority. Each Member Jurisdiction's prisoners shall be defined as those persons being held for offenses committed in that jurisdiction. To encourage compliance with the provisions of this Section, each Member Jurisdiction hereby agrees that it will refuse to pay for the incarceration of any of its Prisoners committed to custody in any jail other than the Jail unless (i) the Jail is full, (ii) the Authority refuses to accept such Prisoner, (iii) commitment of such Prisoner to a correctional facility other than the Jail is ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or (iv) a court of competent jurisdiction orders the Member Jurisdiction to make such payment.

**Section 4.3** <u>Transportation of Prisoners</u>. Unless the Authority agrees otherwise, each Member Jurisdiction shall be responsible for the initial transportation of Prisoners from such Jurisdiction to the Jail for processing into the Jail population, and for transporting its prisoners from the Jail to court appearances and back. The Authority shall be responsible for transporting Prisoners for medical and dental care and other required purposes and for all costs, expenses and security relating to such Prisoners during transportation.

**Section 4.4** Operation and Maintenance. The Authority will operate and maintain the Jail in accordance with all other Applicable Laws. The Authority shall be an equal opportunity employer.

**Section 4.5 <u>Insurance</u>.** The Authority will maintain hazard, liability or such other insurance as may be required by Applicable Law, or which the Authority may deem advisable.

**Section 4.6 <u>Annual Report</u>.** The Authority will provide to each Member Jurisdiction on or before each October 1 a report showing the activities of the Authority and its revenues, expenditures, and employee compensation schedules and other similar data for the preceding Fiscal Year.

Section 4.7 <u>Annual Budget</u>. The Authority will provide to each Member Jurisdiction on or before dates in the fiscal year specified by the Member Jurisdictions the Authority's preliminary Annual Budget for the next Fiscal Year and its final Annual Budget for the next Fiscal Year. For each Fiscal Year in which the Jail will be in operation, such Annual Budget shall set forth the Facilities Charge Percentage for each Member Jurisdiction, the Per Diem rate for each Prisoner committed to the Authority by the Member Jurisdictions, as well as the projected number of Prisoners from each Member Jurisdiction, all for the next Fiscal Year. The Authority agrees to set, and revise at least quarterly, if necessary, Facilities Charges that are sufficient to generate

revenue adequate to pay Net Operating Expenses and Debt Service for the current Fiscal Year, and to fund any required reserves. Within ten days of any such revision the Authority shall notify each member Jurisdiction of the revised charges and payments required. Any such revision will be based on factors affecting the Jail's revenues or expenditures, including but not limited to changes in assumed or actual occupancy levels, operating expenses, State operating or capital cost reimbursement, and any nonpayment by any Member Jurisdiction or other jurisdiction housing prisoners at the Jail. The Authority will promptly provide copies of any amendments to its Annual Budget to each Member Jurisdiction.

**Section 4.8 Books and Records.** The Authority will maintain proper books of record and account in which proper entries shall be made in accordance with general accepted accounting principles for governmental bodies, consistently applied, of all of its business and affairs related to the Jail. The Authority shall have an annual audit conducted by an independent outside auditor, with copies being provided to the Member Jurisdictions.

All books of record and account documents in the Authority's possession relating to the Jail shall at all reasonable times be open to inspection by such agents or employees of the Member Jurisdictions as they may designate.

**Section 4.9** <u>Majority Required for Authority Decisions</u>. A majority of the members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of its business. An affirmative vote of a majority of the full membership of the Board shall be required to adopt the Annual Budget, to amend the Per Diem charges as set forth in Section 4.7, or to approve the creation of any Obligation or any other contract obligating the Authority for longer than one year. All other decisions of the Board may be made by affirmative vote of a majority of the members present and voting.

## ARTICLE V Payments

#### Section 5.1 Payment from Member Jurisdictions.

#### (a) Facilities Charges.

- (1) In each Annual Budget, the Authority shall establish the Facilities Charge for the following Fiscal Year which shall be revised as necessary as provided in Section 4.7.
  - (2) The Facilities Charge shall be invoiced quarterly by the Authority 30 days in advance.
- (A) The Member Jurisdictions agree to pay their ratable share of the Facilities Charge as budgeted by the Authority in accordance with the percentages established annually pursuant to this Section (the "Facilities Charge Percentages") notwithstanding the actual number of Prisoners committed or expected to be committed, subject to Fiscal Year-end adjustment to reflect actual use.

(B) The Facilities Charge for each Member Jurisdiction shall be based upon the actual Prisoner count at the end of the fiscal year after reconciliation subject to Paragraph 5.7(a). For the period commencing on the date of this Agreement through the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2022, the proposed Facilities Charge will be paid in accordance with the following percentages:

Member Jurisdiction	Estimated Bed Usage	Facilities Charge Percentage
Albemarle County City of Charlottesville Nelson County		% % %
Total		100.00%

- (C) Beginning with the Fiscal Year that commences July 1, 2023, the budgeted Facilities Charge Percentages shall be adjusted each Fiscal Year to approximate the actual proportionate use of the Jail by the Member Jurisdictions as of the end of the immediately preceding Fiscal Year. Such actual proportionate use for each Member Jurisdiction shall be determined by a fraction the numerator of which shall be the number of Prisoner beds used by the Member Jurisdiction during the immediately preceding Fiscal Year and the denominator of which shall be the total number of Prisoner beds used by all Member Jurisdictions in the immediately preceding Fiscal Year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Authority and the Member Jurisdictions may use such other method for annually adjusting budgeted Facilities Charge Percentages as may be mutually agreeable.
- (3) If not paid when due, the Facilities Charge shall bear interest at 3/4% per month until paid; provided, however, that this provision shall not apply in instances where Applicable Law prescribes some other due date or late payment charge.
- (4) By the end of each [October] following the immediately preceding Fiscal Year, the Authority shall reconcile the total amount of each Member Jurisdiction's payments to reflect the amount each Member Jurisdiction should have paid during such year based upon actual proportionate use of the Jail and compare it to the amount paid by each Member Jurisdiction. Any Member Jurisdiction which has underpaid shall be notified by the Authority of the amount of the shortfall, which amount shall be paid as an additional sum in equal quarterly installments over the next Fiscal Year. Any Member Jurisdiction that has overpaid shall be entitled to a refund or a credit, as such Member Jurisdiction may elect, in the amount of such overpayment to be applied in equal quarterly installments over the next Fiscal Year; provided, however, no Member Jurisdiction shall be entitled to a full credit until such time as the Authority has received payment of all underpaid amounts. In the event the Authority receives a portion, but not all of the payments due for underpaid bills, the Authority shall apply the amount received ratably as a partial credit to the Member Jurisdictions which overpaid.

- (b) If for any reason any new capital improvements to the Jail approved by the Member Jurisdiction but not ultimately placed in service, the Member Jurisdictions shall reimburse the Authority for all expenses, including debt service on the Authority's interim financings, not previously paid by the Member Jurisdictions pursuant to the percentages contained in the table in Section 5.l(a)(2): provided, however, that the payment required by any Member Jurisdiction, will be subject to the appropriation of funds for such purpose by the governing body of such Member Jurisdiction.
- (c) If the Authority lacks sufficient funds to pay scheduled debt service on any Obligations, or to pay any debt service reserve funding requirements, the Authority shall promptly notify the Member Jurisdictions of the amount of each insufficiency. Upon such notification, each Member Jurisdiction agrees to pay, subject to the conditions contained in this paragraph, a portion of such deficit equal to its Facilities Charge Percentage then in effect for the then current Fiscal Year as determined pursuant to Section 5.1 (a)(2). Any such payment under this paragraph shall be subject to the appropriation of funds by the governing body of each Member Jurisdiction. In no event shall the obligation of any Member Jurisdiction, under this paragraph (c) or the immediately preceding paragraph (b) be deemed to constitute a debt within the meaning of the Constitution of Virginia.
- Section 5.2 Payments from Other Jurisdictions. Within the limits allowed by law, the Authority shall establish a Non-member Per Diem Rate or Rates for the care, maintenance and subsistence of Prisoners from Non-member Jurisdictions. Such Non-member Per Diem Rate charges shall be due and payable to the Authority from Non-member Jurisdictions having Prisoners in the Jail no later than 30 days after receipt of the Authority's periodic billing for such charges and if not paid when due shall bear interest at such rate as the Authority shall establish until paid; provided, however, that this provision shall not apply in instances where applicable law prescribes some other due date or late payment charge.
- Section 5.3 Operating Reserve Fund. The Authority agrees to provide for an Operating Reserve Fund in each of its Annual Budgets in an amount equal to not less than twenty percent of its projected Annual Budget for each year, less debt service. The Operating Reserve Fund will be established as a separate account and will be used to cover periods of revenue shortfall when the Authority's revenues are not sufficient to cover its Operating Expenses or Debt Service, or in such other instances as may be approved by the Authority and concurred in by the chief administrative officers of all member jurisdictions. If such withdrawals reduce the Operating Reserve Fund below twenty percent of the Annual Budget, the Authority shall adopt a plan to restore it to that level over a period not exceed three fiscal years.
- **Section 5.4** <u>Commonwealth Reimbursement Grants.</u> Any funds that the Authority receives from the Commonwealth of Virginia as reimbursement for Debt Service or other Capital Expenses incurred by the Authority for constructing additions or improvements to the Jail or any replacement Jail will be applied as required by the terms of the Indenture for

any Obligations issued to fund such projects.

**Section 5.5** <u>Limitation of Liability.</u> The only obligations of the Member Jurisdictions to pay for the establishment, operation or maintenance of the Jail arise out of this Agreement. No such payment responsibility shall constitute a debt of any Member Jurisdiction within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory limitation.

#### ARTICLE VI

#### **Additional Agreements**

- **Section 6.1** Sale or Other Conveyance. The Authority will not sell, lease, sublease, assign, convey or otherwise voluntarily dispose of the Jail unless all Obligations incurred by the Authority have been or will be paid or deemed defeased in accordance with the agreements under which they were issued.
- **Section 6.2 <u>Further Documents and Data.</u>** The parties to this Agreement will execute and deliver all documents and perform all further acts that may be reasonably necessary to perform the obligations and consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
- **Section 6.3** <u>Right to Access.</u> Each Member Jurisdiction will have reasonable access to the Jail and its records in order to monitor the Authority's compliance with the terms of this Agreement.
- **Section 6.4** Confidentiality. The Authority will maintain all records and files on the Prisoners on a confidential basis in accordance with all Applicable Laws. Each Member Jurisdiction will maintain the confidential nature of all records and files relating to the Prisoners of other Member Jurisdictions in accordance with all Applicable Laws.
- **Section 6.5 Notification.** The Authority will promptly furnish to each Member Jurisdiction a copy of any notice or order of any governmental authority asserting that the Authority or the Jail is not in compliance in any material respect with any Applicable Law.

#### Section 6.6 Tax-Exemption Covenant.

- (a) The Authority intends to issue its Notes and Bonds in a manner such that their interest is excludable from gross income for Federal income tax purposes under Section 103(a) and related provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and applicable rules and regulations. The Authority and each Member Jurisdiction agree that after the Notes and Bonds have been issued, they will not take any action or omit to take any action which would adversely affect such exclusion.
- (b) Pursuant to Section 15c2-12(b) of regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Authority and the Member Jurisdictions will be required to

agree with the owners of the Bonds, for as long as the bonds are outstanding, to supply certain national securities information repositories (I) annually certain financial and statistical information, and (2) periodically, notification of certain specified material events affecting the Authority, the Member Jurisdictions and the Bonds. The particulars of this ongoing disclosure requirement will be set forth in the Indenture and in a continuing disclosure agreement for the Bonds. Each Member Jurisdiction agrees to execute and deliver a continuing disclosure agreement and to cooperate with the Authority in fulfilling this requirement, including providing the Authority with timely notice of the occurrence of any of the specified events which are material to its operations.

**Section 6.7** <u>Additional Members</u>. Any city, county or town in Virginia may, with the approval of its governing body and with the consent of all of the Member Jurisdictions, join and participate in the Authority under such additional terms and conditions for membership as may be prescribed by the Member Jurisdictions.

Section 6.8 <u>Withdrawal of Membership</u>. Any Member Jurisdiction may withdraw from membership in the Authority by resolution or ordinance of its governing body; however, no Member Jurisdiction shall be permitted to withdraw from the Authority as long as any Obligations of the Authority are outstanding except by unanimous vote of all Member Jurisdictions. No Member Jurisdiction withdrawing without unanimous consent of the other Member Jurisdiction(s) shall be entitled to any reimbursement for its equity in the Jail.

**Section 6.9** Change in Independent Status of City. The parties acknowledge that the obligations of the City of Charlottesville under this Agreement presume Charlottesville's continued existence as an independent city. If Charlottesville ceases to be an independent city and becomes a town or other governmental unit that is part of Albemarle County, Charlottesville's obligations under this agreement shall be subject to modification in one of three (3) ways: (a) as prescribed by then-applicable state statutes for such towns or the governmental unit; or (b) as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction; or (c) as determined by agreement of the parties.

#### ARTICLE VII

#### Representations, Warranties and Covenants of Authority

In addition to the covenants in other Articles of this Agreement, the Authority represents, warrants and covenants as follows:

**Section 7.1** <u>Organization. Authorization and Validity</u>. The Authority is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the Commonwealth and has duly authorized and delivered this Agreement.

**Section 7.2** <u>Authority</u>. The Authority has all requisite authority under the Act to execute and deliver and perform its obligations under this Agreement and is not a party of

any indenture, contract or other agreement or arrangement, the performance of which by the Authority would prevent or materially and adversely affect the Authority's ability to perform the terms of this Agreement.

**Section 7.3** Non-Contravention. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Authority and the consummation of the transactions contemplated in it will not conflict with or result in a breach of or constitute a default under or violate any of the terms, conditions or provisions of the Act, the bylaws of the Authority or any material indenture, contract or other agreement or arrangement to which the Authority is a party or by which any of its properties are bound, or any Applicable Law by which the Authority or the Jail is bound.

**Section 7.4** <u>Litigation</u>. The Authority is not a party to any legal, administrative, arbitration or other proceeding or controversy pending, or, to the best of the Authority's knowledge, threatened, which would materially adversely affect the Authority's ability to perform under this Agreement.

**Section 7.5** <u>Approvals.</u> Except for approvals that may be expressly required by this Agreement, or by the Virginia Board of Corrections, the Authority does not require the consent or approval of any governmental body to carry out the terms of this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE VIII

#### Representations, Warranties and Covenants of Member Jurisdictions

Each Member Jurisdiction represents, warrants and covenants for itself as follows:

**Section 8.1** Organization, Authorization and Validity. Each Member Jurisdiction is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the Commonwealth, and each has duly authorized, executed and delivered this Agreement.

**Section 8.2** <u>Authority</u>. Each Member Jurisdiction has all requisite authority to execute and deliver and perform its obligations under this Agreement and is not a party to any indenture, contract or other agreement or arrangement, the performance of which by it would prevent or materially and adversely affect its individual performance under this Agreement.

**Section 8.3 <u>Non-Contravention</u>**. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by each Member Jurisdiction and the consummation of the transactions contemplated in

it will not conflict with or result in a breach of or constitute a default under or violate any of the terms, conditions or provisions of any charter, resolution or ordinance, any material indenture, contract or agreement or arrangement to which it is a party or by which any of its properties are bound, or any Applicable Law by which it is bound.

**Section 8.4 Litigation.** No Member Jurisdiction is a party to any legal, administrative, arbitration, or other proceeding or controversy pending, or, to the best of its knowledge, threatened, which would materially and adversely affect its ability to perform under this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE IX

## Defaults and Remedies

- **Section 9.1** <u>Default by Authority.</u> The occurrence of any one or more of the following events will constitute an "Event of Default" by the Authority ("Authority Default").
- (a) failure of the Authority to pay principal of or interest when due on any Notes, Bonds or other temporary or permanent financing for the Jail issued or obtained by the Authority pursuant to this Agreement;
- (b) the Authority is for any reason rendered incapable of performing any of its material obligations under this Agreement;
- (c) the Authority makes an assignment of all or a portion of its obligations under this Agreement without the prior consent of the Member Jurisdictions;
- (d) the Authority defaults on any of its material obligations under any agreement pursuant to which any Obligations have been issued pursuant to this Agreement and such default is not cured within the applicable cure period;
- (e) any proceeding is instituted, with the consent or acquiescence of the Authority, for the purpose of effecting a composition between the Authority and its creditors or for the purpose of adjusting the claims of such creditors pursuant to any federal or state statute now or hereafter enacted, if the claims of such creditors are under any circumstances payable from the bonds of the Authority; or
- (f) the Authority defaults in the due and punctual performance of any other of the covenants, conditions, agreements and provisions contained in this Agreement, and the default continues for thirty days after written notice specifying the default and requiring it to be remedied has been given to the Authority by any Member Jurisdiction.

- **Section 9.2 <u>Default by Member Jurisdictions</u>.** The occurrence of any one or more of the following events will constitute an "Event of Default" by any Member Jurisdiction ("Member Jurisdiction Default").
- (a) failure of any Member Jurisdiction to make payments of Facility Charges in accordance with its respective Facilities Charge Percentage when due;
- (b) if any Member Jurisdiction shall for any reason be rendered incapable of fulfilling its obligations under this Agreement; or
- (c) if any proceeding is instituted, with the consent or acquiescence of any Member Jurisdiction, for the purpose of effecting a composition between such Member Jurisdiction and its creditors or for the purpose of adjusting the claims of such creditors pursuant to any federal or state statute now or hereafter enacted, if the claims of such creditors are under any circumstances payable from the funds of such Member Jurisdiction; or
- (d) if any Member Jurisdiction defaults in the due and punctual performance of any of the other covenants, conditions, agreements and provisions contained in this Agreement, and the default continues for thirty days after written notice specifying the default and requiring it to be remedied has been given to such Member Jurisdiction by the Authority.
- **Section 9.3** Remedies of Member Jurisdictions. Upon the occurrence of an Authority Default, any Member Jurisdiction, after giving notice of such Authority Default to all parties, may bring suit by mandamus or other appropriate proceeding to require the Authority to perform its duties under the Act and this Agreement or to enjoin any acts in violation of the Act or this Agreement.
- **Section 9.4 Remedies of Authority.** Upon the occurrence of a Member Jurisdiction Default, the Authority, after giving notice of such Member Jurisdiction Default to all parties, may bring suit by mandamus or other appropriate proceeding to require the Member Jurisdiction to perform its duties under the Act and this Agreement or to enjoin any acts in violation of the Act or this Agreement.
- **Section 9.5** Remedies Not Exclusive. No remedy in this Agreement conferred upon or reserved to the parties is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each remedy is cumulative and in addition to every other remedy given under this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law, in equity or by statute.

## **ARTICLE X**Miscellaneous

**Section 10.1** <u>Severability of Invalid Provisions</u>. If any clause, provision or section of this Agreement is held to be illegal or invalid by any court, the invalidity of the

clause, provision or section will not affect any of the remaining clauses, provisions or sections, and this Agreement will be construed and enforced as if the illegal or invalid clause, provision or section has not been contained in it.

**Section 10.2 Notices.** Any notice or other communication under or in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be effective when delivered in person or sent by first class United States mail to the following persons and addresses or to such other persons and addresses as any of such persons may from time to time specify in writing.

#### If to the Authority:

Chair Albemarle-Charlottesville Regional Jail Authority 1600 Avon Street Extended Charlottesville, VA 22901

#### **If to Albemarle County:**

County Executive Albemarle County Office Building 401 McIntire Road Charlottesville, VA 22902-4596

## If to City of Charlottesville:

City Manager P.O. Box 911 Charlottesville, VA 22902

#### If to Nelson County:

County Administrator P.O. Box 336 Lovingston, VA 22949

**Section 10.3** Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

**Section 10.4 Governing Law.** This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia.

**Section. 10.5** <u>Amendments</u>. This Agreement may be changed or amended only with the consent of the Authority and each Member Jurisdiction. No such change or amendment may be made which will affect adversely the prompt payment when due of all monies required to be paid by the Member Jurisdictions under the terms of this

Agreement, and no such change or amendment shall be effective which would cause a violation of any provision of any resolution, indenture or agreement pursuant to which any Obligations have been issued.

**Section 10.6** Effective Date of Agreement. This Agreement will be effective from the date of its approval by each of the Member Jurisdictions and the Authority

**Section 10.7** <u>Waiver</u>. Any waiver by any party of its rights under this Agreement must be in writing, and will not be deemed a waiver with respect to any matter not specifically covered. Nothing in this Agreement authorizes the waiver of any Member Jurisdiction's obligation to make payments when due of all moneys required to be paid by the Member Jurisdictions under the terms of this Agreement.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF,** the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed bytheir duly authorized officers on the dates indicated.

COUNTY OF ALBEMARLE		APPROVED AS TO FORM
County Executive		County Attorney
CITY OF CHARLOTTESVILLE		APPROVED AS TO FORM
City Manager		County Attorney
COUNTY OF NELSON		APPROVED AS TO FORM
	Page <b>17</b> of <b>18</b>	

County Executive	County Attorney
ALBEMARLE-CHARLOTTESVILLE REGIONAL JAIL AUTHORITY	APPROVED AS TO FORM
Chair	Attorney

### ALBEMARLE CHARLOTTESVILLE REGIONAL JAIL AUTHORITY

#### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

Agenda Date: June 9, 2022

**Agenda Item: Finance Director Long Term Plan** 

Information only

Staff Contact(s): Martin Kumer, Superintendent and Felicia Morris, Director of Human Resources

The previous Business Manager officially retired on December 31, 2021.

After analyzing the Jail's needs and conducting a cost a benefit analysis, it has been determined that hiring a consultant to serve in the role as the Jail's Director of Finance will meet the needs of the Jail in a more cost effective manner.

Therefore, in order to continue sound financial business operations, the Jail is requesting the board to approve the continued use of the services of Ann Shawver, CPA, Public Finance Consulting, on a consulting basis. Mrs. Shawver has been serving in her current capacity as a part-time employee.

The salary range for a Finance Director is \$90,000 - \$110,000 plus taxes and benefits. Mrs. Shawver's consulting fee is \$160 per hour. Based on Mrs. Shawver's submitted hours over the last 12 months we anticipate that no more than 520 hours per year or 10 hours per week will be needed, at an annual cost of \$83,000.

In addition, Mrs. Shawver is also serving in a similar capacity for the Blue Ridge Juvenile Detention Center.

Mrs. Shawver has been assisting the Jail since February 2021 with the Jail's transition from Albemarle County. Mrs. Shawver has considerable experience and is more than qualified to serve as the Jail's Finance Director. Mrs. Shawver was the Finance Director for the City of Roanoke and has experience with public debt which will serve the Jail well during the renovation and expansion.

If the Jail's renovation and expansion is approved, Mrs. Shawver will coordinate with Davenport Financial Advisors, the Jail's Financial Advisor and bond council, Sands Anderson.

The Finance Team will then consist of:

Ann Shawver, CPA, Director of Finance

Lyn Wrigley, Procurement Specialist and Finance Department Manager

Christina Brock, Accounts Receivable and other business related responsibilities

Adrienne Beauford, Accounts Payables and other business related responsibilities

The Superintendent will continue to work with the finance team to prepare and manage the budget

Recommendation: Approve the above plan to enter into a consulting contract with Ann Shawver, CPA, Public Finance Advisor, to serve as the Jail's Director of Finance until further notice.

## ALBEMARLE CHARLOTTESVILLE REGIONAL JAIL AUTHORITY

#### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

Agenda Date: June 9, 2022

**Agenda Item: Renovation and Expansion Update** 

**Information only** 

**Staff Contact(s): Martin Kumer, Superintendent** 

The facility's renovation process is on schedule per the Community Based Corrections Plan (CBCP). Moseley Architects is still actively managing the process.

Since our last Board meeting, Diantha McKeel, Jail Board Chair, Martin Kumer, Superintendent and Moseley Architects presented to the Board of Local and Regional Jails, BOLRJ, on May 18, 2022. The purpose of the presentation was to request 25% reimbursement from the state for all reimbursable expenses. The BOLRJ is expected to make a decision at their July 2022 meeting.

One BOLRJ board member stated it was refreshing to have a regional jail request funds to improve a facility as opposed to needing to add more beds.

#### **Next Steps:**

**Seek Approval from member Jurisdictions:** We will be seeking approval to move forward with the project. We expect to make several presentations to each jurisdiction during this time so they can make a well informed decision before the fall of this year, 2022.

#### Order of Steps and schedule:

Project Planning, Design, and Construction Schedule Advertise RFP and Select A/E December 2021 - June, 2023

Receive Legislative approval (Legislative session) June, 2023

Award A/E Contract and Design NTP (or earlier at risk) June, 2023

VDOC required Value Engineering on Design November, 2023

Complete Construction Documents/secure County design approvals March, 2024

Advertise for bids May, 2024

Receive Bids May, 2024

Negotiate Contract August, 2024

Notice to Proceed (Construction) August, 2024

Substantially Complete construction (14 months – to be confirmed) October, 2025

Final Completion of project November, 2025

# ALBEMARLE CHARLOTTESVILLE REGIONAL JAIL AUTHORITY EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Agenda Date: June 9, 2022

**Agenda Item: COVID Update** 

**Information only** 

**Staff Contact(s): Martin Kumer, Superintendent** 

There are no active cases among our inmate population.

We currently have 2 active staff cases. Both staff members are doing well.

The facility is still operating under COVID restrictions, to included, no in person visitation (we will begin limited in person visitation beginning July 1) requiring masks for all staff, limited movement throughout the facility, testing and quarantining of all new inmates.

We have resumed programming to include GED and some Re-Entry classes as well as Substance Abuse Education classes.

Staff who test positive will quarantine at home until they are cleared to return to work per the CDC return to work guidelines for essential personnel.

We will continue to ensure cleaning supplies approved by the CDC and EPA to be effective against the virus that causes COVID-19 and are distributed twice daily.

We continue to ensure all inmates have access to running soap and water. Per the CDC, using soap and water is the most effective way to cleanse your hands and prevent the spread of COVID-19. The jail does not issue inmates hand sanitizer. Hand sanitizer must be at least a 60% alcohol solution to be effective. Due to the significant potential for abuse and since it is less effective than soap and water.